History of Lambrecht Cemetery Association of
Pierce County, Nebraska

1938-1983

All of the early written history of the Lambrecht Cemetery and its predecessor in
name has been lost except for the Articles of Incorporation of Pleasant View
Cemetery which had been transcribed into the records of the Pierce County Clerk
and maintained in a book called Association Records now in the office of the
Pierce County, Nebraska Register of Deeds. The written history that we now
process of those early days and up to 1946 exists because of two interrelated
events.

In 1937, the descendants of August and Louise Lambrecht, the donors of the acre
of land upon which the Lambrecht Cemetery is located, determined to rename
the official name of the cemetery from Pleasant View Cemetery Association of
Pierce County, Nebraska to the Lambrecht Cemetery Association of Pierce County,
Nebraska, to honor August and Louise Lambrecht, their sacrifice and their
donation. Statutorily, this name change required a formal meeting of the
members of the Association and the adoption of a motion by the members of the
Association authorizing the name change. In compliance with that procedure,
several documents and proceedings of the Association were required to be
recorded with the Pierce County Register of Deeds. Those documents and
proceedings, primarily the by-laws and various minutes of meetings of the
members of the Association, were in the Secretary’s Book of the Cemetery
Association. Ernest A. Lambrecht, a son of August and Louise Lambrecht, was in
possession of that Secretary’s Book in 1938. From the mid-1920s through the
1930s, he had been the Pierce County Sheriff and then a Pierce County
Commissioner.

With the assistance of an attorney, several portions of the Secretary’s Book were
transcribed from cursive to typewritten form and recorded in the office of the
Pierce County Register of Deeds. He also permitted members of the Pierce
County Historical Society to inspect and review the contents of the Secretary’s
Book. He also permitted the editor of the Pierce County Leader newspaper to
inspect the Secretary’s Book. Always in the hunt for a news article, the editor



TAWNEY CEMETERY
HISTORY REVEALED
IN EARLY RECORDS

An interesting old secretary’s
journal, which, contains the by-
laws and minutes of all the meet-
ings of the Pleasant View ceme-
tery association in Willow Creek
precinct, from the time of its or-
ganization, April 21, 1883, until
the present day was being studied
this week by those making:rec-
ords for the Pierce County His-
torical Society. Although Pleas-
ant View is the original name of
this cemetery located 12 miles
west of Pierce, it is most fre-
quently referred to as the Tawney
Cemetery.

The organization meeting was
held at the August Lambrecht
homestead, one acre in the north-
west corner of his farm being
exchanged for a lot in the newly
formed association. The lots were
eighteen feet square and until
May 15, 1883, could be purchased
for $1.50 each. After that date
they were $2.50. Four lots in the
southeast corner were set aside as
a potters field. Originally the an-
nual meetings were scheduled for
the first Saturday in March, but
in later years have been held on
Memorial Day.

Three trustees were chosen to
serve. Joseph Forsythe was se-
lected as the first chairman; Rufus
Tawney secretary and Herman
Steinkraus as the third member.
On March 8, 1884 at the annual
meeting, August Lambrecht was
named the first treasurer.

The charter members of this
cemetery association who pur-
chased lots for $1.50 each were:
August Lambrecht, in exchange
for one acre of ground, Rufus
Tawney, Joseph Forsythe,: Fred
Rautenberg, Julius Schultz, Chris
Schram, R. H. Smith, Frank
Birch, D. Kuether Sr., Carl Leis-
ner, Herman Steinkraus, Albert
Steinkraus, L. L. Poynter, Charles
Ulrich, August Heyer, S. W. Kin-
caid, George W. Kincaid, I. C.
Barnes and L. A. Barnes. The
last two names were later can-
celled. A revised list of lot own-
ers in 1906 contains 66 names.

At the annual meeting at the
Tawney school house on March
11, 1899, the by-laws were
amended to raise the price of lots
to $4.50, the report of F. Birch,
secretary shows. In May, 1923
they were raised to $10. R. A.
Tawney was secretary of the as-
sociation for many years. In his
report of the meeting at his home
October 1, 1883; Mr. Forsythe was
authorized to buy a two string
barb wire fence .for the grounds
and Augus Lambrecht was to
build it for $3. At this meeting
the deed to the ground was ac-
cepted as acknowledged by Aug.
Lambrecht and wife and given to
chairman Forsythe to record. The
following March .~ the trustees
were instructed to meet in Pierce
on April 1, to acknowledge deeds
to all cemetery lots to date.

In 1894 red cedar stakes were
placed to mark lots at a cost of
$3.15. In February, 1895 one dol-
lar was paid for a frame and glass
for the plot of the cemetery
drawn by hand by W. E. Bishop
when he surveyed the land in
1883. The original frame and
plat ‘were recently brought to the
court house by E. A. Lambrecht,
a son of the homesteader on
whose land the cemetery was laid
out, who later owned the land and
disposed of it only last fall. The
records show Mr. Bishop re-
ceived $5 for making the survey.

In 1895 a fire line was plowed
about the grounds and Frank
Birch was paid $4.50 for trees and
planting them out. In 1898 a wov-
en wire fence and posts were con-
structed about the grounds at a
cost of $156.81. The old wooden
fence was sold to Robert Ruhlow
for $10.75. Thirty lot owners were
assessed $4.45 each to pay for the
new fence. It was also decided to
buy a half acre east of the ceme-
tery for hitching posts. In 1910
it was voted to replace the red
cedar marking stakes with bricks
set one inch above the ground.
Another item was $1.25 for grass
seed.

In 1917 the board of trustees
elected were all women, Mrs.
Mary Voecks, chairman; Mrs.
Jane Birch, secretary, and Miss

published on May 27, 1937 an article briefly summarizing numerous details
contained in the Secretary’s Book.

Sophia Keller, treasurer. A din-
ner was served May 29 which net-
ted the association $3. In the suc-
ceeding year items for work and
improvements at the cemetery
show that it was given much care.
By this time as much as $4 and $5
was paid for cutting the grass.

In 1924 Frank Voecks was in-
structed to mark all unmarked
graves and clean the cemetery.
Later he was named caretaker. In
1929 an assessment of one dol-
lar on each lot was levied for up-
keep. In 1928 a lawn mower was
purchased. In 1933 the lot owners
were instructed to take care of
their lots. About that time Mr,
and Mrs. Frank Voecks moved to
Creston and since then the asso-
ciation has not been very active
in looking after the cemetery.
Mrs. Voecks was said to be the
moving spirit in looking after the
plot where her parents and many
of the early Willow Creek resi-
dents were buried. In 1935
through the Pierce County His-
torical Society this old cemetery
was restored.

The present officers are Ernest
Lambrecht, chairman; Henry
Kuhl, treasurer and Homer Birch
secretary. Others who have
served as officers not before
named were: S. W. Kincaid, L. L.
Poynter, M. E. King, Robert Ruh-
low, Daniel Kerr, J. R. Smith, Q.
H. Mundorf, I. C. Barnes, Theo-
dore Symnovec, Fred Synovec and
Albert Buss.

The book in which this long
time record has been kept is still
in good shape and only partly
used. It cost $1.55 including some
stationery for the use of the sec-
retary. The foregoing account
gives an idea of times and condi-
tions in the early history of our
county.

These summaries will be the basis for further narratives. Neither Ernest
Lambrecht nor the Pierce County Historical Society retained possession of the
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A lire, possibly caused by a dol
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living wouth of Foster Taesday after-

THORTY,

Mirs. Birgh on hearing a noise nz
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Secretary’s Book. It was given back to the Cemetery
Association’s secretary, Homer Birch. As there was no
building dedicated for the storage of any of the written
records of the Cemetery Association, those records were
kept and maintained by the respective officers of the
Cemetery Association at their residence. Unfortunately for
him and his family and for the Lambrecht Cemetery
Association, its members, and their descendants, a fire

occurred at the Homer Birch residence in January of 1943 as reported in the
January 21, 1943 issue of the Pierce County Call newspaper. It was later reported
to the members of the Lambrecht Cemetery Association that the Secretary’s Book
of the Cemetery Association had been consumed in the fire and lost forever.
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Pierce Leader newspaper published May 9, 1940 Pierce County and the Call
newspapers published May 16 and May 23 of 1940.



The next milestone for the Lambrecht Cemetery was the creation of a mapping
system for the burial spaces in the Cemetery by Arlen Voecks, a grandson of
August and Louise Lambrecht. Prior to 1980, it appears that the only plat/map of
the Lambrecht Cemetery was the original Bishop plat which had been created
shortly after the formation of the Pleasant View Cemetery in 1883. Initially, the
names of the original owners of the various Lots in the Cemetery were written
into their respective Lots. Remember, each Lot consisted of eight burial spaces.
—— s » Each Block consisted of
" four Lots. Over time, the

| secretary, or another
i ~ officer of the Cemetery,
- «would draw burial spaces

. " in the Lots and write,
. especially in Blocks 11 and
" 12, into the burial spaces,
e the names of the persons
“.. buriedin those burial
~ spaces. Also, initially, Lots
. were offered for sale.

/ Again, Lots consisted of
eight burial spaces. By
S 1980, the members of the

25, Cemetery Association

~ ' realized that the burial
‘ : - - spaces should be offered
i S ~ for sale, not the Lots.
ambacht The question then was
(emalny how to identify the burial

spaces. The solution was

to devise a “column” and “row” designation for each Block. Each Block would
have four columns identified as A, B, C, and D across the top of each Block and
each Block would have eight rows, identified as 1-8. The upper left burial space in
each Block would be identified as burial space A-1 and the burial space in the
lower right corner of the Block would be identified as D-8. Now the unoccupied
and unsold burial spaces could be located and offered for sale. Also, the names of
all burials and all burial spaces purchased up to that date were noted. Over time,
this plat was updated with burials and burial space purchases.
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The next eventful
occurrence enhancing the
appearance of the
Cemetery was the
erection in 1983, the
centennial year of the
Cemetery, of an entrance
arch at the main entrance
into the Cemetery and
adjacent to the
rock/boulder erected at
that location in 1940. This
entrance arch was given
to the Lambrecht Cemetery Association by Herbert and Leona Voecks. Herbert
was a grandson of August and Louise Lambrecht.




